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Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of
the registrant under any of the following provisions:

[ 1 Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

[ 1 Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

[ ] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

[ ] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))
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Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

In a Form 8-K that was filed on March 8, 2011 by Hunt Global Resources, Inc. ( Hunt or the Company ), we disclosed
that we had closed a transaction with certain shareholders of Carbon Green NA, Inc. ( CGNA ), a private Colorado
corporation, whereby we agreed to acquire CGNA stock in exchange for an equity interest in us. CGNA was the
successor company to Carbon Green, Inc. The first closing of this transaction took place on March 2, 2011 with the
signing of a definitive Share Purchase Agreement and Plan of Merger (the SPA ). See Item 2.01. This filing is an
update since the transaction occurred and contains financial information required within 75 days of the acquisition

date.

Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.

Acquisition of CGNA

On March 2, 2011, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the "Acquisition Agreement") to acquire 85%
of the common stock of CGNA and 96% of the preferred stock of CGNA in exchange for the issuance to ten selling
shareholders of CGNA 30,249,256 shares of the Company's common stock, 123,675 shares of the Company's Class A
preferred stock ( Class A ) and 123,675 shares of the Company's Class B preferred stock ( Class B ), The holders of
Class A have the right to convert each share of Class A for 208 shares of common stock if the common stock trades at
an average price of at least $3.00 per share for 10 consecutive trading days or after a period of one year, whichever
occurs first. The holders of Class B have the right to convert each share of Class B for 248 shares of common stock if
the common stock trades at an average price of $7.00 per share for 10 consecutive trading days or after a period of
two years, whichever occurs first. In addition, warrants to acquire 24,000 shares of the Company's Class A preferred
stock at an exercise price of $208 a share expiring on March 2, 2016, and warrants to purchase 38,285 shares of the
Company's Class B preferred stock at an exercise price of $248 a share expiring on March 2, 2016. Under the
Acquisition Agreement, CGNA became a majority-owned subsidiary of the Company. All of these securities issuable
under the Acquisition Agreement are unregistered.

Once the second closing occurs, the Company will have acquired the remaining shares of CGNA common and
preferred stock on the same basis as above. The purpose of the additional acquisition of CGNA shares is to allow the
Company to acquire the remaining equity interests in CGNA, resulting in CGNA becoming the Company's
wholly-owned subsidiary. We will issue to the remaining CGNA common and preferred shareholders 5,433,041
shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase 8,027,900 shares of the Company's common stock at
an exercise price between $1 and $2.50 a share expiring on various dates between 2012 and 2014. In addition, CGNA
will return 17,626 shares of the Company's Class A preferred stock and 6,480 shares of the Company's Class B
preferred stock received in connection with the first closing. We anticipate this closing to occur before the end of the
second quarter of 2011.
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The Acquisition Agreement also includes provisions for the Company to issue certain directors, employees, advisers,
vendors and consultants of CGNA stock options to purchase up to 10,000,000 shares of our common stock, 9,245,000
of which have been designated at an exercise price of $1.00 per share, expiring on March 2, 2014. These options that
have been designated will not begin vesting until September 1, 2011 and will then vest in equal portions over eight
quarters. The Company will also create a stock option plan for its employees. The plan will provide for stock option
grants to purchase up to 8,000,000 shares of Hunt s common stock.

In connection with our acquisition of CGNA, we appointed Michael P. Horne, a consultant to and shareholder of
CGNA s predecessor, as a Director of our Company effective March 8, 2011. Mr. Horne is our Chief Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer. In the near future, we may increase the number of Directors to five and appoint one
other person to be named by CGNA as an additional new Director.

Pursuant to the SPA, we will be responsible for the payment of CGNA s and its predecessor s existing liabilities and
ongoing costs. Included herein are unaudited interim financial statements for the six month period ended December
31, 2010 and the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011.

The acquisition of Carbon Green under the Acquisition Agreement was intended to qualify as a tax-free reorganization
under the provisions of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to be accounted for on a
purchase basis.
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CGNA Valuation

In conjunction with the acquisition of CGNA, we engaged Lehrer Financial Economic Services ( Lehrer ) to complete a
valuation of the CGNA technology and assets. Lehrer had previously provided a valuation for Hunt common stock
and is familiar with the Hunt operations. The purpose of the valuation of CGNA assets and technology was to assist
Hunt management in determining the value of the assets acquired. Lehrer concluded that the intangible assets of
CGNA had a value of $139.1 million. We determined the fair value of current assets, property, plant and equipment
and current liabilities based approximated their book value. In addition, we have made an initial allocation of the
valuation of the technology to the individual patents and licenses. We will continue to review this allocation
throughout 2011 and review for impairment at the end of each fiscal year. Lehrer s valuation is included herein as
Exhibit 99.1. The value of the acquisition was made based upon the value of the assets of Carbon Green acquired and,

as such no goodwill was created due to the thin capitalization of Hunt.

Post-Merger Capitalization of Hunt

Prior to the acquisition of CGNA, certain shareholders of CGNA purchased 1,350,000 shares of Hunt common stock.

The purpose of the issuance of these shares was to provide Hunt working capital and funds to complete the
acquisition of CGNA. The following summarized table assumes the capitalization of the combined company after
final closing resulting in the issuance of 35,682,297 shares of Hunt common stock, 106,049 shares of Class A
preferred stock (each share convertible into 208 shares of Hunt common stock), 117,195 shares of Class B preferred
stock (each share convertible into 248 shares of Hunt common stock), warrants to purchase 8,027,900 shares of Hunt
common stock between $1.00 and $2.50 per share, warrants to purchase 18,270 shares of Class A preferred stock at
$208 per share and warrants to purchase 16,935 shares of Class B preferred stock at $248 per share. The table is
presented for both basic shares outstanding and fully diluted shares outstanding.

Hunt Shares Hunt Shares Total
Outstanding @ Issued to Outstanding
April 30, 2011 Carbon Green First Closing
Basic:
Common Stock 40,318,670 35,682,297 76,000,967
Series A Preferred 25,680,392 22,058,213 47,738,605
Series B preferred 31,000,000 29,064,238 60,064,238
Shares Outstanding 96,999,062 86,804,748 183,803,810
Pre-merger Carbon Green Holdings in Hunt (1,350,000) 1,350,000 -
Basic Shares Outstanding 95,649,062 88,154,748 183,803,810
% Ownership 52.04% 47.96%
Fully Diluted:
Common Warrants 19,835,000 8,027,900 27,862,900
Preferred A Warrants (18,270 Preferred) - 4,992,000 4,992,000
Preferred B Warrants (16,935 Preferred) - 9,994,400 9,994,400
Fully Diluted Shares Outstanding 115,484,062 111,169,048 226,653,110
% Ownership 50.95% 49.05%
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In determining whether a change in ownership occurred, Hunt management reviewed all factors associated with the
acquisition of CGNA. Under the terms of the SPA, Hunt maintains control of the board of directors and all executive
management positions except the Chief Financial Officer. The corporate and primary operational offices have been
moved to the Hunt corporate office location in The Woodlands, Texas. On both a basic and fully diluted basis,
majority ownership is maintained by Hunt shareholders. In addition, under the terms of an agreement between Hunt
and CGNA, the final issuance of shares in the second closing will result in CGNA shareholders owning less than 50%
of Hunt. The Company did not consider the stock options to purchase up to 18,000,000 shares of Hunt common stock
to be granted in the future as these stock options plans are subject to stockholder approval, will require vesting periods
be met and the allocation between Hunt and CGNA stockholders is expected to maintain greater than 50% ownership
for non-CGNA stockholders. Based on these and other lesser factors, we concluded that reverse merger accounting
was not required and that Hunt was both the legal and accounting acquirer. Until the second closing occurs and 100%
ownership of CGNA is obtained, Hunt will report a minority interest. The pro forma financial information included in
Exhibit 99.2 are based on Hunt obtaining 100% ownership of CGNA.
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Item 2.03 Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation under an Off-Balance Sheet
Arrangement of a Registrant.

See Item 2.01 for details of our unregistered sale of equity securities in connection with our acquisition of CGNA.
These transactions were made in reliance upon exemptions from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act
or Regulation S. The certificates to be issued for these unregistered securities will contain a legend stating that the
securities have not been registered under the Securities Act and setting forth the restrictions on the transferability and
the sale of the securities. No underwriter participated in, nor did we pay any commissions or fees to any underwriter,
in this transaction. These transactions did not involve a public offering. The recipients were knowledgeable about our
operations and financial condition. The recipients had knowledge and experience in financial and business matters
that allowed them to evaluate the merits and risk of receipt of these securities. The recipients were accredited
investors or foreigners not living in the United States.

Item 8.01 Other Events

The Company is in default on the payment of the first quarter dividend on the Class A preferred stock. The total
amount of dividend accrued as of March 31, 2011 and subsequently unpaid was $93,086. The Company does not
intend to pay these dividends until it has been properly capitalized and/or has sustainable cash flow from operations.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

Contained herein are the audited financial statements of Hunt Global Resources, Inc. (for the years ended December
31, 2010 and 2009) and Carbon Green, Inc (for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009), the predecessor entity of
Carbon Green NA, Inc., a Colorado corporation that was acquired by the Company, as well as the unaudited financial
statements of Carbon Green, Inc. (for the six months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009). The unaudited pro forma
information reflecting the combination of Hunt and Carbon Green, Inc., the predecessor company, is included herein
as Exhibit 99.2.

Financial Statement Schedules:

Description Page
Hunt Global Resources, Inc.:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6
Independent Auditors Report F-26
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2009 and 2010 F-27
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years ended June 30, 2010
and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Shareholders Equity for the years ended June 30, 2010 and
2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010

Interim Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the six months ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Interim Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the six months ended December
31,2010

Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Exhibits

Exhibit # Description

99.1 Lehrer Financial and Economic Advisory Services Specific Market Valuation
99.2 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

F-28

F-29

F-30
F-31
F-52
F-53

F-54

F-55
F-56
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, hereunto duly authorized.

HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES, INC.

By: /s/ George T. Sharp
George T. Sharp, Chief Executive Officer and Director

By: /s/ Michael P. Horne
Michael P. Horne, Chief Financial Officer,
Principal Accounting Officer and Director

Date: May 18, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Management of

Hunt Global Resources, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hunt Global Resources, Inc. and Subsidiaries (a
development stage company) (the “Company”), as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and for the
period from inception, December 1, 2008, to December 31, 2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and for the period from inception, from December 1, 2008 to December 31,
2010, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As shown in the financial statements, the Company incurred net losses of $5,316,805 and $10,903,514 for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2010, current liabilities exceed current assets by
$5,069,956. These factors, and the others discussed in Note 3, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be
necessary in the event the Company cannot continue in existence.

/Is// Ham, Langston & Brezina, LLP

10



Houston, Texas

April 15,2011
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HUNT GLOBAL
RESOURCES
INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development
Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE
SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Related party receivables
Prepaid royalties to related parties
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net of
accumulated
depreciation of $142,389 and
$33,838, respectively
Surface mining rights and royalty
agreement
Assets held for sale
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payable and
long-term debt
Notes payable to related parties
Accounts payable, including amounts
due to related
parties of $162,252
Accrued liability to a related party
Accrued interest payable
Accrued dividends payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion

December 31,
2010

$ 1,069,473
29,413
622,986
59,074
1,780,946

918,047

3,696,177

25,000
$ 6,420,170

$ 4,346,704
1,100,000

757,879
276,000
323,653
46,666
6,850,902

2009

$ 5,766
58,000
274,246
15,000
353,012

979,134

3,696,177

536,265
13,277
$ 5,577,865

$ 3,763,600
1,106,144

36,000
429,983

5,335,727
120,000

12



Edgar Filing: HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES, INC. - Form 8-K/A

Total liabilities 6,850,902 5,455,727
Commitments and contingencies:
Shareholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, no par value,
1,000,000 shares authorized
for issuance in classes:
Class A convertible preferred,

125,000 shares authorized,

123,463 and -0- shares issued and

outstanding at

December 31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively

Class B convertible preferred, 125,000
shares authorized,

125,000 and -O- shares issued and

outstanding at

December 31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively

Common stock, no par value per share,
100,000,000

shares authorized, 37,442,453 and

84,930,121

shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2010

and 2009, respectively 13,884,175 11,845,021
Loss accumulated during the (17.039.688)  (11.722.883)
development stage

Total shareholders' equity (deficit) (430,732) 122,138

Totgl 1iabil‘iti‘es and shareholders' $ 6,420,170 $ 5.577.865

equity (deficit)

2,414,139 -

310,642 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HUNT GLOBAL
RESOURCES
INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development
Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS
OF
OPERATIONS

For the Period
From Inception
December 1,
2008,

For the Year Ended December to December 31,

31,
2010 2009 2010
Operating
expenses:
Selling,
general, and  $ 4,269,663 $ 7,799,388 $ 12,142,931
administrative
Depreciation
and 108,550 33,838 142,388
amortization
Total
operating 4,378,213 7,833,226 12,285,319
expenses
Loss from
operations during
the
development ) 378 913)  (7,833.226) (12,285,319)
stage
Other income and
(expense):
Interest and 13,555 655 14210
other income
Interest expense (758,396) (945,447) (2,449,332)
Gain (loss) on
debt conversion (927,981) (927,981)
Equity in loss
of Momentum (188,671) (30,000) (218,671)
Loss on (5,080) (1,167,515) (1,172,595)

investment
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Total other

income
and (938,592) (3,070,288) (4,754,369)
(expense),
net
Net loss (5,316,805) (10,903,514) (17,039,688)
Preferred stock
dividends (46,666) - (46,666)
Net loss

attributable to $ (5,363,471) $ (10,903,514) $ (17,086,354)
common stock

Net loss per
common share -
basic and
diluted $ (0.07) $ (0.15)
Weighted average
shares outstanding
basic and

diluted 76,507,008 71,510,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-3
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HUNT GLOBAL
RESOURCES INC.
AND
SUBSIDIARIES

(A Development
Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF
SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Losses
Class A Preferred Class B Preferred Common Stock Accumulated
Stock Stock During the
Development

Shares  Amount Shares = Amount Shares Amount Stage Total
Balance at
inception,

- $ - - $ - 4,878,000 $ - $ - $ -
December 1,
2008
Issuance of
common
stock for
leasehold
agreement
Issuance of
common
stock to - - - - 2,729,845 682,056 - 682,056
compensate
debt-holders
Net loss
Balance at
December
31, 2008

50,146,427 91,000 - 91,000

(819,369) (819,369)

57,754,272 773,056 (819,369) (46,313)

Issuance of
common
stock in
settlement of
debt and )
payment of
interest
expense
Common - - - - 2,506,000 2,506,000 - 2,506,000
stock and

warrants

- - - 55,108 13,770 - 13,770
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sold as units
in a private
placement
Common
stock and
warrants
issued in -
units in
settlement of
debt
Common
stock and
warrants
issued in
units to
consolidate
and extend
debt
Issuance of
common
stock to
amend debt
Issuance of
common
stock for
services
Net loss
Balance at
December
31, 2009

Common
stock issued
for debt
settlement
Sale of
common -
stock
Exercise of
options
Common
stock and
warrants

sold as units
in a private
placement
Common
stock issued
for
investment

Edgar Filing
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2,052,000

950,000

200,000

21,412,741

84,930,121

370,358

3,819,537

73,333

1,728,000

220,451

2,981,145

.- Form 8-K/A

2,052,000

950,000

200,000

5,350,195

11,845,021

193,000

1,699,000

9,000

1,728,000

55,080

1,126,521

(10,903,514)

(11,722,883)

2,052,000

950,000

200,000

5,350,195

(10,903,514

122,138

193,000

1,699,000

9,000

1,728,000

55,080

1,126,521

17



Issuance of
common
stock for
services
Exchange of
Class A and
Class B
preferred
stock for
common
Preferred
stock -
dividends

Net loss -
Balance at
December 123,463
31,2010

123,463
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2,414,139 125,000 357,308 (56,680,492)  (2,771,447) -

- - (46,666) - - -

_ ] ) ] ; (5,316,805)

$

$ 2,414,139 125,000 $ 310,642 37,442,453 13,884,175

$(17,039,688)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-4

(46,666)
(5,316,805)

$ (430,73

18
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period
From Inception,
December 1, 2008
For the Year Ended December
31,
2010 2009 2010

to December 31,

Cash flows from
operating activities
Net loss $ (5,316,805) $ (10,903,514) $ (17,039,688)
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to
net cash flow
from operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization
Loss on
investment
Loss (gain) on
debt conversion
Equity in losses
of Momentum
Issuance of
common stock for 1,126,521 5,350,195 6,476,716
services
Common stock
issued for interest
expense
Investment
exchanged for - 10,000 10,000
services
Issuance of note
payable for - 500,000 500,000
consulting
Changes in
operating assets
and
liabilities,
net of
acquisitions:

108,550 33,838 142,388
5,080 1,167,515 1,172,595
927,981 927,981

188,671 30,000 218,671

206,885 888,941

28,587 80,770 (29,413)

19



Related party
receivables
Prepaid
expenses and
other
Accounts
payable and
accrued
liabilities
Net cash used in
operating activities
Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of
property, plant
and equipment
Investment in
Momentum
Other investments
Investment in
Reserve Oil
Technologies
Proceeds from
sale of Reserve
Oil Technologies
Net cash used in
investing activities
Cash flows from
financing activities
Proceeds from
notes payable
Payments on long
term debt
Proceeds from
issuance of
common stock
Net cash provided
by financing
activities

Increase in cash
and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash
equivalents,
beginning of
period

Cash and cash
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(379,537)

1,400,903

(2,838,030)

(47,463)

(188,671)
(25,000)

586,265

325,131

193,000

(52,394)

3,436,000

3,576,606

1,063,707

5,766

equivalents, end of$ 1,069,473

period

(271,969)

531,309

(2,336,990)

(2,972)

(46,416)

(49.,388)

38,699

(152,555)

2,506,000

2,392,144

5,766

$ 5,766

(682,060)

1,998,849

(5,415,020)

(50,435)

(188,671)
(25,000)

(46,416)

586,265

275,743

481,699

(214,949)

5,942,000

6,208,750

1,069,473

$ 1,069,473

20
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Supplemental

disclosure of cash

flow information:
Interest paid $ 355,372 $ 484,252
Income taxes
. $ - $ -

paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Hunt Global Resources, Inc. (A Colorado corporation) and Subsidiaries (“Hunt” or the “Company”) is a Houston based
development stage company focused on the production of aggregates, including sand and gravel. The Company’s
business model centers on using new, “green” and more efficient extraction and processing methods to enhance profit
and shareholder value. The Company has two wholly-owned Subsidiaries, Hunt Global Resources, Inc. (A Texas
Corporation) and Hunt BioSolutions, Inc. (A Texas Corporation).

Mining Property

On December 1, 2008, the Company entered into the Hunt Land and Mineral Lease Agreement (the “Mining
Agreement”) and secured the surface mining rights to 350 acres of land in northwest Houston which contains
high-grade sand and gravel reserves. The majority owners of the land are Jewel and Lisa Hunt (44.45%), officers and
directors of the Company, and Mallie Hunt Adams (44.45%).

In exchange for the mining rights, the Company issued to the owners of the land 91,000,000 shares of common stock
as founders’ shares valued at $91,000. In addition, the Company assumed debt on the mining property and related
accrued interest in the amount of $3,605,177. Per the terms of the Mining Agreement, the Company will pay the land
owners a royalty of 10% of the sold price of all products mined, processed, removed or manufactured and sold from
the mining site. The term of the lease is twenty years and expires on December 31, 2028 unless extended in writing
by the parties to the lease. The Company is responsible for the maintenance of the property and all property taxes
during the term of the lease. Management estimates that the land under the Mining Agreement has reserves of sand
and gravel that are expected to provide production for 18 years.

Reverse Merger

On January 19, 2010, Tombstone Technologies, Inc. ("Tombstone"), a Colorado corporation, entered into a plan of
merger with the Company that was completed on October 29, 2010. Under the plan of merger, the Company's
shareholders exchanged 100% of their equity interests in the Company for 94.6% of Tombstone's outstanding stock on
a fully diluted, as-converted basis. Although Tombstone was the surviving legal entity; the Company remains the
financial reporting entity and the merger was treated as a recapitalization of the Company. The transaction was
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considered a recapitalization because, prior to the transaction, Tombstone was a public shell company with essentially
no assets or operations and, upon completion of the transaction, the Company's shareholders emerged with a
controlling 94.6% interest in the merged Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When considering the merger, there were no dissenting shareholders of the Company. However, all shareholders have
not tendered their shares and the Company is actively communicating with the non-tendering shareholders to effect
their right to receive Tombstone shares. Subsequent to the transaction, Tombstone changed its name to match the
Company's name, Hunt Global Resource, Inc. In connection with the recapitalization, shareholders of the Company
received Tombstone shares as follows:

29,000,000 shares of restricted common stock to the holders of the Company's common and preferred Stock;

125,000 shares of Class A convertible preferred stock (having a conversion ratio of one preferred share to 208
common shares) to certain holders of the Company's common stock. The Class A has a deemed purchase price of
$10.00 per share, ranks senior to common stock and all other classes of preferred stock, bear no dividends, has voting
rights of two hundred eight (208) votes for each Class A share and has a liquidation preference of $10,000 per share.
The holders of Class A have the right to convert each share of Class A for 208 shares of common stock if the
Common Stock trades at an average price of at least $3.00 per share for 10 consecutive trading days or after a period
of one year, whichever occurs first.

125,000 shares of Class B convertible preferred stock (having a conversion ratio of one preferred share to 248
common shares and a quarterly dividend of $0.56 per share) to certain “Controlling Stockholders” (Jewel Hunt, Lisa
Hunt and George Sharp, through his company, Crown Financial) of the Company's common stock. The Class B
includes a deemed purchase price of $10 per share, ranks senior to common stock and all other classes of preferred
stock except Class A, bears a dividend of $0.56 per share on a quarterly basis commencing on January 1, 2011, has
voting rights of two hundred forty eight (248) votes for each one (1) share of Class B shares and has a liquidation
preference of $10,000 per share. The holders of Class B have the right to convert each share of Class B for 248 shares
of common stock if the common stock trades at an average price of $7.00 per share for 10 consecutive trading days or
after a period of two years, whichever occurs first.

A reserve for issuance of an additional 10,265,999 additional shares of common stock for the exercise of stock
options for 1,689,999 shares of Hunt common stock that have been extended for two years and the exercise of Hunt
warrants for 8,576,000 shares of Hunt common stock.
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At the date of the merger/ recapitalization transaction the Company's shareholders received Tombstone common
shares as follows:

The holders of 7,436,000 shares of the Company's preferred stock and warrants to purchase 8,576,000 shares of
the Company's common stock received common stock of Tombstone on a one for one basis.

The holders of 142,564,001 shares of the Company's common stock received the equivalent of 82,564,000 shares
of Tombstone common stock which, based on the conversion ratio, resulted in a the same effect as 1 for 1.814622
reverse split of the Company's existing common stock. The Company's common shareholders received Tombstone
shares as follows:

Number of
Common
Stock
Equivalents
Common shares outstanding on the date of the merger transaction 142,564,001
Less effect of exchange ratio (64,000,001)
Tombstone common stock equivalents received 78,564,000
Class B preferred stock received by Controlling Stockholders (31,000,000)
Remaining Tombstone common stock equivalents 47,564,000
Class A preferred stock issued on a pro-rata basis based on the
remaining
Tombstone common stock equivalents (26,000,000)
Tombstone common stock issued on a pro-rata basis based on the
remaining Tombstone common stock equivalents 21,564,000
Tombstone common stock issued to the Company’s
preferred shareholders on a one-for-one basis 7,436,000
Shares of common stock of Tombstone outstanding prior to the merger 4,878,000
Total common shares outstanding or issuable at the date of merger 33,878,000

The merger was intended to qualify as a tax-free reorganization under the provisions of Section 368 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to be accounted for on a purchase basis. The capital accounts of the
Company have been adjusted on a retroactive basis to reflect the merger/recapitalization.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued the FASB Accounting Standard Codification ™ (the
“Codification” or "ASC"). The Codification becomes the single source of authoritative nongovernmental accounting
standards generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"), superseding existing authoritative literature.
The codification establishes one level of authoritative GAAP. All other literature is considered non-authoritative. This
Statement was effective beginning with our consolidated financial statements issued for the year ended December 31,
2009. As a result, references to authoritative accounting literature in our consolidated financial statement disclosures
are referenced in accordance with the Codification.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hunt and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions by management in determining the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Our significant estimates primarily relate to the assessment of warrants and debt and equity transactions and
the estimated lives and methods used in determining depreciation of fixed assets. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments having maturities of three months or less at the date of
purchase.

Equity Method Investments

The Company accounts for non-marketable investments using the equity method of accounting if the investment
provides the Company with the ability to exercise significant influence over, but not control of, an investee.
Significant influence generally exists with an ownership interest representing between 20% and 50% of the voting
stock of an investee. Under the equity method of accounting, investments are stated at initial cost and adjusted for
subsequent additional investments and the Company's proportionate share of earnings or losses and distributions. The
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Company currently has one equity method investee, Momentum, and we record our share of Momentum's earnings or
losses in equity in losses of Momentum in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Where the
Company's investment balance is reduced to zero from its proportionate share of losses, as in the case of Momentum,
the investments are accounted for under the cost method. Under the cost method, investments are carried at cost and
adjusted only for other-than-temporary declines in fair value, distributions of earnings or additional investments.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment is recorded at original cost. Assets acquired in connection with business combinations are
recorded at the assets’ fair value. Repairs and maintenance are charged to expenses as incurred. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of assets. This method is applied to group
asset accounts, which in general have the following lives: buildings and leasehold improvements — 15 years;
machinery and equipment— 5 to 7 years; furniture, fixtures and software — 5 years; and computer hardware — 3 years.
When we retire or dispose of property, plant or equipment, we remove the related cost and accumulated depreciation
from our accounts and reflect any resulting gain or loss in our consolidated statements of operations.

The recoverability of our long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles are evaluated for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. Such evaluations for impairment are significantly impacted by estimates
of future prices, capital needs, economic trends in the applicable construction sector and other factors. If such assets
are considered to be impaired, the impairment is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceed their fair value. Assets to be disposed of by sale are reflected at the lower of their carrying amounts, or fair
values, less cost to sell.

F-9

28



Edgar Filing: HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES, INC. - Form 8-K/A

HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Surface Mining Rights

A significant portion of our intangible assets are contractual rights in place associated with obtaining, zoning,
permitting and other rights to access and extract aggregates reserves. Contractual rights in place associated with
aggregates reserves are amortized using a unit-of-production method based on estimated recoverable units. Other
intangible assets are amortized principally by the straight-line method.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels as described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data;
Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement.

Stripping Costs

In the mining industry, the costs of removing overburden and waste materials to access mineral deposits are referred
to as stripping costs. Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are considered a cost of extracted minerals
and are included as a component of inventory to be recognized in cost of sales in the same period as the revenue from
the sale of the inventory. Stripping costs incurred during the development stage of a mine (pre-production stripping)
are excluded from inventory cost. Pre-production stripping costs will be expensed as incurred.
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Other Costs

Costs are charged to earnings as incurred for the start-up of new plants and for normal recurring costs of mineral
exploration and research and development.

Reclamation Costs

Reclamation costs resulting from the normal use of long-lived assets are recognized over the period the asset is in use
only if there is a legal obligation to incur these costs upon retirement of the assets. Additionally, reclamation costs
resulting from the normal use under a mineral lease are recognized over the lease term only if there is a legal
obligation to incur these costs upon expiration of the lease. The obligation, which cannot be reduced by estimated
offsetting cash flows, is recorded at fair value as a liability at the obligating event date and is accreted through charges
to operating expenses. This fair value is also capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. If the obligation is settled for other than the carrying amount of
the liability, a gain or loss is recognized on settlement.

In determining the fair value of the obligation, the cost for a third party to perform the legally required reclamation
tasks, including a reasonable profit margin, is estimated. The estimated cost is then increased for both future estimated
inflation and an estimated market risk premium related to the estimated years to settlement. Once calculated, this cost
is discounted to fair value using present value techniques with a credit-adjusted, risk-free rate commensurate with the
estimated years to settlement.

In estimating the settlement date, the current facts and conditions are evaluated to determine the most likely settlement
date. If this evaluation identifies alternative estimated settlement dates, a weighted-average settlement date,
considering the probabilities of each alternative, is used.

F-10
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Reclamation obligations are reviewed at least annually for a revision to the cost or a change in the estimated
settlement date. Additionally, reclamation obligations are reviewed in the period that a triggering event occurs that
would result in either a revision to the cost or a change in the estimated settlement date. Examples of events that
would trigger a change in the cost include a new reclamation law or amendment of an existing mineral lease.
Examples of events that would trigger a change in the estimated settlement date include the acquisition of additional
reserves or the closure of a facility.

Environmental Compliance

Environmental compliance costs are expected to include maintenance and operating costs for pollution control
facilities, the cost of ongoing monitoring programs, the cost of remediation efforts and other similar costs. Although
we have not incurred any significant environmental compliance expenses to date, we will expense or capitalize
environmental expenditures for current operations or for future revenues consistent with our capitalization policy.

Costs for environmental assessment and remediation efforts will be accrued when the Company determines that a
liability is probable and a reasonable estimate of the cost can be determined. At the early stages of a remediation
effort, environmental remediation liabilities are not easily quantified due to the uncertainties of varying factors. The
range of an estimated remediation liability is defined and redefined as events in the remediation effort occur.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company reports two earnings per share numbers, basic and diluted. These are computed by dividing net earnings
(loss) by the weighted-average common shares outstanding (basic) or weighted-average common shares outstanding
assuming dilution (diluted).

All dilutive common stock equivalents are reflected in our earnings per share calculations. Anti-dilutive common
stock equivalents are not included in our earnings per share calculations. The number of potentially dilutive common
stock equivalents that have been excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would
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be anti-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, were 68,907,508 and 7,197,999, respectively. An
analysis of the potentially dilutive common stock equivalents at December 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

December 31,

2010 2009
Warrants
for
purchase of 11,270,000 6,168,000
common
stock

Options for
purchase of
common
stock
Preferred
stock
convertible 56,680,392 -
to common
stock
Total

common
stock
equivalents

956,666 1,029,999

68,907,508 7,197,999

Income Taxes

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, we record deferred income taxes
based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and use enacted
tax rates and laws that we expect will be in effect when we recover those assets or settle those liabilities, as the case
may be, to measure those taxes. We record a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that
is more likely than not to be realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and payables
approximated fair value because of the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of other
financial instruments approximate their respective fair values.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Share-Based Payment Arrangements

Compensation expense for all share-based payment awards, including employee stock options, is measured and
recognized based on estimated fair values. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods, if any.

The fair value of stock option awards is estimated on the date of grant using an option-pricing model. The Company
uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (“Black-Scholes Model”) as its method of valuation for share-based
awards. The determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing
model is affected by the Company's stock price, as well as assumptions regarding a number of subjective

variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards,
as well as actual and projected exercise and forfeiture activity.

The Company follows the guidance of the Codification as described in ASC 505-50 “Equity Based Payments to
Non-Employees” for transactions in which equity instruments are issued in exchange for the receipt of goods or
services to non-employees. The Company accounts for the issuance of equity instruments to acquire goods and
services based on the fair value of the goods and services or the fair value of the equity instrument at the time of
issuance, whichever is more reliably measurable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”’) No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about
Fair Value Measurements (“ASU 2010-06"), which requires additional disclosures about the various classes of assets
and liabilities measured at fair value, the valuation techniques and inputs used, the activity in Level 3 fair value
measurements and the transfers between Levels 1, 2, and 3. The disclosures are effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and
settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements, which are effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2010. This guidance did not have a material impact on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.
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3. GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATIONS

Hunt has incurred significant losses from operations since inception, has limited financial resources and a significant
deficit in working capital at December 31, 2010. These factors raise substantial doubt about Hunt’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Hunt’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010 have been prepared
on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal
course of business. The Company currently has an accumulated deficit of $17,039,688 through December 31, 2010.
Hunt’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to develop additional sources of capital and,
ultimately, achieve profitable operations. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

4. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

Reserve Qil Technologies, LL.C

On February 27, 2009, the Company (along with four individual investors) formed Reserve Oil Technologies, LLC
(the “LLC”). Under their agreement, the four investors agreed to provide a maximum of $1,000,000 in financing to the
LLC (including $250,000 previously loaned to the Company) to purchase certain oil and gas leases in Bastrop County,
Texas containing at least 70 previously drilled wells. The original ownership of this LLC was to be 25% to Hunt,

10% to the managing individual investor, and 65% to the four individual investors as a group.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES, continued

On March 1, 2009, the Company issued promissory notes to the four investors totaling $1,000,000 as guaranty for
their maximum investment, including the conversion of the $250,000 in previous notes, and the four investors were
issued a total of 950,000 shares of the Company's common stock along with 950,000 warrants to purchase common
stock during the ensuing 4 years for $1.00 per share as a financing premium (see Note 7).

On December 15, 2009, the Company entered into agreements with the four investors to acquire the investors entire
interest in the LLC and retire the outstanding $1,000,000 in notes payable with accrued interest to the four investors
for the issuance of 2,052,000 shares of the Company's common stock along with 2,052,000 warrants to purchase
common stock during the ensuing 4 years for $1.00 per share (see Note 7).

On December 22, 2009, the Company entered into a sales agreement for all oil and gas leases owned by the LLC for a
sales price of $1,100,000 less offsets for vendor liens, prospective vendor liens and defective leases. The transaction
funded during the first quarter of 2010 with net proceeds received by Hunt of $586,265. The Company recorded a
corresponding loss on investment of $1,167,515 in December 2009 to write down our investment in the LLC to its fair
market value.

Momentum Biofuels, Inc.

On August 21, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with Momentum Biofuels, Inc. (“Momentum”), under
which the Company agreed to acquire certain assets and assume certain liabilities, obligations and commitments of
Momentum as shown in the analysis below. The assets received by the Company were Momentum's physical assets,
including the biodiesel plant located in Pasadena, Texas, and all intellectual property, processes, techniques and
formulas for creating biofuels and related products.

The Company also entered into a License Agreement with Momentum, which grants the Company the right to use,
improve, sublicense and commercialize the intellectual property described in the Agreement, in exchange for a 3%
royalty on the gross and collected revenue received by the Company from the sale of bio-diesel and related products
and from revenues received by the Company from its proposed commercial sand business. Momentum assigned its
royalty rights to its parent, Momentum-Colorado, in exchange for 40,000,000 common shares of
Momentum-Colorado, which was equal to approximately 39% of the issued and outstanding stock at the date of the
License Agreement, to be issued to Hunt. The 40,000,000 shares are subject to a non dilution agreement.

On October 9, 2009, the Momentum transaction was consummated and on December 31, 2009, the Company received
the 40,000,000 shares of common stock of Momentum described in the previous paragraph and transferred 10,000,000
shares to Crown Financial, LLC (see Note 10 below for further details). The 40,000,000 shares of Momentum

common stock issued to Hunt were valued at their par value due to the doubt about Momentum’s ability to continue as
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a going concern as disclosed in its annual report. During 2009, the Company recognized loss from its investment in
Momentum only to the extent of its initial investment of $30,000. During 2010, the Company recognized a loss in
Momentum of $188,671. The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed under the Momentum agreement:

Estimated
Value
Assets acquired:
Plant $998,000
Plant equipment 12,000
Investment in Momentum 40,000
Total assets acquired $1,050,000
Liabilities assumed:
Accrued interest $45,000
Bathgate notes payable 600,000
Brand Energy notes payable 185,000
Other notes payable 220,000

Total liabilities assumed $1,050,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES, continued

Not shown in the analysis, the Company further agreed to assume Momentum’s commitment under a sub-lease
agreement between Momentum and Brand Infrastructure and Services, Inc., including any past due rent, assessments
and other charges related to the property.

Momentum Biofuels, Inc.

Summarized financial information for Momentum, assuming a 100% ownership interest, is as follows:

December 31,
2010 2009
Balance
Sheets
Current o5 100,000 $ 2,124,527
liabilities
Noncurrent
liabilities 120,000
Stockholder’
deficit (2,100,000) (2,244,527)

October 9,
2009
(Acquisition
Date)
To
December
2010 31, 2009
Statements of
Operations
Plant expenses $ - $ 26,891
General and 195,831 541,845
administrative
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expenses
Loss from
operations
Net loss
attributable to (193,831) (590,268)
shareholders

Equity in

losses of (188,671) (30,000)
Momentum

(195,831) (568,736)

S. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,

2010 2009

Plant $ 998,000 $ 998,000
Machinery and

. 12,000 12,000
equipment
Vehicles 25,000 -
Eurmture and 22.464 2.972
fixtures

1,057,464 1,012,972

Less
accumulated (142,389) (33,838)
depreciation

Property,

plant and g0 047§ 979,134

equipment,

net

Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $108,550 and $33,838, respectively.
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6. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable and long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,
2010 2009
Mortgage note
payable to an
individual,
bearing interest
of 18% per
year, payable
on October
18, 2008,
collateralized
by Deed of
Trust and
Security
Agreement on
real property
owned by a
company
owned by a
stockholder
of the
Company and
by
officers,
directors and
stockholders
of the
Company,
consisting
in an
undivided
88.89 percent
interest in a
tract of land
$ 2,959,354 $ 2,450,000



containing
553.735 acres
in
Montgomery
County,
Texas.
Mortgage note
payable to a
company,
bearing interest
of 18% per
year, payable
on October
18, 2008,
collateralized
by Deed of
Trust and
Security
Agreement on
real property
owned by an
unrelated
individual
and by
officers,
directors and
stockholders
of the
Company,
consisting of
6.066 acres in
Montgomery
County,
Texas.
Mortgage note
payable to a
company,
bearing interest
of 15% per
year, payable
on April 1,
2010,
collateralized
by Deed of
Trust
and Security
Agreement on
real property
owned by
officers,
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635,000 35,000
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directors and
stockholders
of the
Company,
consisting of
21.676
acres in
Montgomery 123,600 123,600
County,
Texas.
Mortgage note
payable to a
company,
bearing interest
of 18% per
year, payable
on April 17,
2008,
collateralized
by Deed of
Trust
and Security
Agreement on
real property
owned by
officers,
directors and
stockholders
of the
Company,
consisting of
Lot
13 of
Carriage Hills
subdivision in
Montgomery
County,
Texas.
Note payable to
an individual
for consulting
services,
bearing
interest of 8%
per year,
payable on
December 1,
2009,
collateralized
by personal
guaranty of

60,000 60,000



officers,
directors and
stockholders
of the
Company.
Note payable to
a company,
bearing interest
of 8% per year,
payable
January 9,
2010,
collateralized
by personal
guaranty of
officers,
directors and
stockholders
of the
Company.
Notes payable
to an individual,
bearing interest
of 10% per
year,
payable
on
May 1,

2013,
unsecured.
Note payable to

an individual,
bearing interest
of 10% per
year,
payable on
demand,
collateralized
by Security
Agreement
covering
certain
equipment
which the
Company
acquired from
Momentum.
Note payable to
an individual,
bearing interest
of 10% per

Edgar Filing: HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES, INC. - Form 8-K/A

250,000

138,750

95,000

60,000

250,000

185,000

95,000

60,000
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year,
payable on
April 8, 2014,
collateralized
by Security
Agreement
covering
250,000
shares of 25,000 20,000
stock of
Momentum.
Total
notes
payable
and
long-term
debt
Less
current (4,346,704) (3,763,600)
portion
Long
term $ - $ 120,000
debt

4,346,704 3,883,600
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY NOTES PAYABLE,
continued

Notes payable to related parties consist of the following:

December 31,
2010 2008

Notes payable to
two individual
stockholders,
non-interest
bearing,
payable
on
demand,
unsecured.
Notes payable to
fourteen
stockholders of
Momentum
assembled by an
investment
banking
company,
bearing
interest of
10% per year,
payable on
December 31,
2010,
collateralized
by a Security
Agreement
covering all
property,
plant and
equipment,
and other

$ - $ 6,144
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assets which
the Company
acquired from
Momentum
Note payable to
a company
controlled by an
officer of the
Company
for financial
and
management
consulting
services,
bearing
interest of 8%
per year,
payable on
January 1,
2010,
unsecured.
Notes
payable
to related
parties

600,000 600,000

500,000 500,000

$ 1,100,000 $ 1,106,144

The Company was in default on $5,446,704 and $3,395,000 of the total notes payable balance as a result of being past

due on payments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Following is analysis of the contractual future annual maturities of notes payable and long-term debt, including related

party notes payable, at December 31, 2010:

Year
ending
December Amount
31,
2011 $ 5,326,704
2012 -
2013 95,000
2014 25,000

$ 5,446,704

7. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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All share amounts and characteristics presented in these consolidated financial statements have been adjusted on a
retroactive basis to reflect the recapitalization transaction with Tombstone as described in Note 1. The primary effects
of this transaction were as follows:

The common share exchange ratio for Tombstone shares had the impact of a 1 for 1.814622 reverse split of the
Company's existing common stock.

The Company's existing preferred stock was exchanged for Tombstone common stock on a one for one basis and
accordingly, the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity does not present preferred stock until new preferred
shares were issued by Tombstone at the October 29, 2010 recapitalization date.

Tombstone shares, both common and preferred are no par value shares and, accordingly, amounts previously
presented in additional paid-in capital are included in the share value in the consolidated statement of shareholders'

equity.

Options and warrants of both Tombstone and the Company that were outstanding at the date of the recapitalization
remain outstanding without adjustment after the recapitalization.

Tombstone shares outstanding at the date of the recapitalization are considered to be outstanding in all periods
presented.

F-16
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued
Common Stock

Presented below is an analysis of common stock activity during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Shares Issued Per Share Total Value
Value
2008 Share Issuances
Acquisition of mining lease, with shares
valued based on estimated predecessor
Cost (1) 50,146,427 $ 0.00 $ 91,000

Interest to debt-holders (2) 2,729,845 0.25 682,056

2009 Share Issuances

Issuance of common stock in settlement
of

debt (2) 27,554 0.25 6,885
Issuance of common stock in settlement
of

accrued interest (2) 27,554 0.25 6,885
Sale of common stock and warrants in
units

in a private placement (3) 2,506,000 1.00 2,506,000
Issuance of common stock with warrants
in

units in settlement of debt (4) 2,052,000 1.00 2,052,000
Issuance of common stock with warrants
in

units to extend and consolidate debt (4) 950,000 1.00 950,000
Issuance of common stock with warrants
in

units for debt amendment (4) 200,000 1.00 200,000
Issuance of common stock for services (2) 21,412.741 0.25 5,350,195

2010 Share Issuances
Issuance of common stock in settlement
of

debt (5) 370,358 0.45 - 091 193,000

Sale of common stock in a private (6) 3.819.537 025 - 1.00 1.699.000
placement
Sale of common stock and warrants in
units
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in a private placement (3) 1,728,000 1.00 1,728,000
¥ssuance of common stock for an (2) 220451 0.25 55.080
investment
Issuance of common stock for services (7) 2,981,145 0.25 - 1.30 1,126,521
Issuance of common stock upon exercise
of

options (6) 73,333 0.10 - 0.20 9,000

(1) These shares were issued to the three property owners of the sand and gravel mining land that forms the basis of
the Company's Mining Agreement (see Note 1). The value of the shares issued to the property owners was recorded at
$91,000, which approximates the owners historic cost in the property under lease.

(2) The value assigned to these shares was based on a valuation of the Company at June 30, 2010, adjusted for
changes during period from the valuation date through December 31, 2010 and after consideration of the value of
preferred shares and warrants sold for cash as described in (3) below. The actual number of shares and value of these
shares have been adjusted on a retroactive basis for the share exchange that occurred in connection with the October
29, 2010 recapitalization transaction with Tombstone (see Note 1).

(3) These shares were recorded based on actual cash proceed received. These units were, at the time of the sales,
preferred shares with detachable warrants for a similar number of common shares that were exercisable for a period of
2 to 4 years at a price of $1.00 per share. Preferred shares were exchanged for common shares on a one for one basis
in the recapitalization transaction with Tombstone that closed on October 29, 2010 (see Note 1). The warrants for
common shares remained exercisable for the same number of pre-recapitalization shares subsequent to the
recapitalization transaction.

(4) These shares were valued based on the cash proceeds received in cash sales of similar units as described in (3)
above.

(5) These shares were valued based on the cash proceeds received in cash sales of common stock near the time of the
debt conversions.

(6) These shares were recorded based on actual cash proceeds received.

(7) These shares were value in two ways as follows: (i) based on the cash proceeds received in cash sales of common
stock near the time of the service awards, and (ii) based on a valuation of the Company at June 30, 2010, adjusted for
changes during the period from the valuation date through December 31, 2010 and after consideration of the value of
preferred shares and warrants sold for cash as described in (3) below. The actual number of shares and value of these
shares have been adjusted on a retroactive basis for the share exchange that occurred in connection with the October
29, 2010 recapitalization transaction with Tombstone (see Note 1).
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On January 31, 2011, the shareholders of the Company approved an increase in the authorized shares from
100,000,000 to 500,000,000.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued

Preferred Stock

At the date of the recapitalization, Tombstone issued two classes of preferred stock in exchange for a portion of the
Company's common stock as follows:

123,463 shares of Class A convertible preferred stock (having a conversion ratio of one preferred share to 208
common shares) were exchanged on a pro-rata basis for 25,680,304 shares of the Company's common stock to all
holders of the Company's common stock. The Class A has a deemed purchase price of $10.00 per share, ranks senior
to common stock and all other classes of preferred stock, bears no dividends, has voting rights of two hundred eight
(208) votes for each one (1) Class A share and has a liquidation preference of $10,000 per share. The holders of
Class A have the right to convert each share of Class A into 208 shares of common stock if the common stock trades
at an average price of at least $3.00 per share for 10 consecutive trading days or after a period of one year, whichever
occurs first.

125,000 shares of Class B convertible preferred stock (having a conversion ratio of one preferred share to 248
common shares and a quarterly dividend of $0.56 per share) were exchanged for 31,000,000 shares of the Company's
common stock held by certain “Controlling Stockholders” (Jewel Hunt, Lisa Hunt and George Sharp, through his
company, Crown Financial) of the Company's common stock. The Class B includes a deemed purchase price of $10
per share, ranks senior to common stock and all other classes of preferred stock except Class A, bears a dividend of
$0.56 per share on a quarterly basis commencing on January 1, 2011, has voting rights of two hundred forty eight
(248) votes for each one (1) share of Class B shares and has a liquidation preference of $10,000 per share. The
holders of Class B have the right to convert each share of Class B into 248 shares of common stock if the common
stock trades at an average price of $7.00 per share for 10 consecutive trading days or after a period of two years,
whichever occurs first.

Warrants
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A summary of warrant activity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 follows:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Shares Average  Remaining Intrinsic
Underlying Exercise Contractual Value

Description Warrants  Price Term (in years) (In-The-Money)
Outstanding at
December 31, 2,390,000 $ 3.77 1.2 $ 1,614,000
2008

Issued in

private 2,506,000 1.00 2.0 5,012,000

placements

Issued in

debt 2,052,000 1.00 4.0 4,104,000

settlement

Issued as

note 950,000 1.00 4.0 1,900,000

premium

Expired (1,730,000) 5.00 - -
Outstanding at
December 31, 6,168,000 0.95 2.9 12,630,000
2009

Issued in

private 5,762,000 0.89 2.0 12,750,500

placements

Expired (660,000) 0.55 - (1,614,000)
Outstanding at
December 31, 11,270,000 $ 0.94 1.9 $ 23,766,500
2010
Exercisable at
December 31, 11,270,000 $ 0.94 1.9 $ 23,766,500
2010
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued

The following summarizes outstanding warrants and their respective exercise prices at December 31, 2010:

Shares Underlying

Description

Warrants
Warrants 30,000
Warrants 10,000
Warrants 2,466,000
Cashless 150,000
Warrants
Warrants 50,000
Warrants 555,000
Warrants 8,000
Warrants 1,060,000
Warrants 600,000
Warrants 5,000
Warrants 300,000
Warrants 60,000
Cashless 840,000
Warrants
Warrants 2,000,000
Warrants 134,000
Warrants 2,052,000
Warrants 950,000

11,270,000
Stock Options

Exercise
Price

1.00
1.00

1.00

0.55

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

0.55

0.60

1.00

0.50

1.00

1.00

1.00

Date of Expiration

July 2011
August
2011
December
2011
December
2011
January
2012
February
2012
April
2012

May 2012
July 2012
August
2012
August
2012
August
2012
September
2012
December
2012
December
2012
November
2013
December
2013

Remaining Contractual

. Intrinsic
Term (in years) Value
0.5 $ 60,000
0.3 20,000
1.0 4,932,000
1.0 367,500
1.0 100,000
1.2 1,110,000
1.3 16,000
1.4 2,120,000
1.6 1,200,000
1.7 10,000
1.7 735,000
1.7 144,000
1.7 1,680,000
2.0 5,000,000
2.0 268,000
2.9 4,104,000
3.0 1,900,000

$ 23,766,500
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A summary of option activity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 follows:

Shares Weighted Weighted Average Aggregate
Underlying Average Remaining Contractual Intrinsic Value
Description  Options Exercise Price Term (in years) (In-The-Money)
Outstanding at
December 31, 900,000 $ 065 - 1.50 3.33 $ 1,935,832
2008
Granted 129,999 0.10 -0.20 3.00 370,330
Outstanding at
December 31, 1,029,999 0.95 2.33 2,306,162
2009
Exercised (73,333) 0.10 - 0.20 - (159,331)
Outstanding at
December 31, 956,666 $ 0.76 1.33 $ 2,146,831
2010
Exercisable at
December 31, 956,666 $ 0.76 1.33 $ 2,146,831
2010

The following summarizes outstanding options and their respective exercise prices at December 31, 2010:

Shares Remaining Aggregate

Underlying  Exercise Date of Contractual Intrinsic
Description Options Price Expiration Term (in years) Value
Options 6,666 $ 0.10 August 2012 1.33 $ 19,331
Options 50,000 0.20 August 2012 1.33 140,000
Options 150,000 0.55 August 2012 1.33 367,500
Options 375,000 0.65 August 2012 1.33 881.250
Options 155,000 0.75 August 2012 1.33 348,750
Options 70,000 1.00 August 2012 1.33 140,000
Options 100,000 1.25 August 2012 1.33 175,000
Options 50,000 1.50 August 2012 1.33 75,000

956,666 $ 2,146,831
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. INCOME TAXES

There is no current or deferred tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 due to the Company’s
loss position. The deferred tax consequences of temporary differences in reporting items for financial statement and
income tax purposes are recognized, as appropriate. Realization of the future tax benefits related to the deferred tax
assets is dependent on many factors, including the Company’s ability to generate taxable income. Management has
considered these factors in reaching its conclusion as to the valuation allowance for financial reporting purposes and
has recorded a valuation allowance against all deferred tax assets at December 31, 2010 and 2009. The income tax
effect of temporary differences comprising deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

December 31,

2010 2009
Net operating loss carryforward $ 2,221,900 $ 1,066,614
Charitable contribution carryover 3,220 -
Book versus tax basis of property, plant and equipment (10,682) (2,216)
Prepaid royalty expense (207,055) (93,254)
2,007,383 971,144

Valuation allowance (2,007,383) (971,144)

Net deferred tax assets $ - $ -

The Company has available net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $6,535,000 for tax purposes to offset
future taxable income which expire in 2028 to 2030. The tax years 2008 to 2010 remain open to examination by
federal authorities and other jurisdictions in which the company operates and is subject to taxation.

A reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% and the effective rate of income tax expense is
as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Tax
benefit at
federal $ 1,771,799  $ 3,707,195
statutory
rate
Non-deductable (380,091) (1,819,077)
stock
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based
compensation
Non-deductable
business

meals and
entertainment
Non-deductable
interest - (72,682)
expense
Non-deductible
(gain) loss on
investment and
debt conversion
Non-deductible
transaction (169,289) -
costs
Miscellaneous
non

deductible
items
Non-deductible
loss on

equity
investment
Change

in

valuation
allowance

(8,473) (6,073)

32,375 (697,680)

- (188,888)

- 2,216

(1,036,239)  (925,011)

Provision

for $ - $ -
income

taxes

9. OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases certain equipment, office and manufacturing facilities under operating lease arrangements. At
December 31, 2010, future annual minimum lease payments due under non-cancelable operating leases were as
follows:

Year ending December 31, Amount

2011 $412,307

2012 161,211
$573,518
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The total rent expense under operating lease arrangements was $227,204 and $271,675 for the years ended December
31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company engaged in certain related party transactions.
These transactions were approved by the Company's board of directors and management and are described below:

Jewel Hunt is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and his wife is a member of the board and the
Company's secretary (collectively, the “Hunts”). The Hunts are also the founders and primary shareholders of the
Company and the primary owners of 350 acres of land in northwest Houston containing sand and gravel reserves to
which the Company has obtained surface mining rights.

On December 1, 2008, the Company approved the acquisition of the surface mining rights discussed in the previous
paragraph in exchange for the issuance of 50,146,427 shares of common stock to the Hunts and the assumption of
debts totaling $3,605,177. The surface mining rights were valued based on the historical cost of the underlying
property to the Hunts less the debt assumed by the Company. The value was estimated to be approximately $91,000
as the property has been in the Hunt family for over a century.

The surface mining rights agreement provides for the payment of a royalty to the Hunts equal to 10 percent of the
sales price of all products mined, processed, removed or manufactured and sold from the property. On December 1,
2008, the Company's board of directors approved the prepayment of royalties to the Hunts, not to exceed $450,000 per
year. The Company made advanced or prepaid royalty payments to the Hunts of $348,740 and $274,246 during the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Advances or prepaid royalty payments are included in prepaid
royalties to related parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The Hunts maintain an office in their home that is used for Company business. This office houses certain computer
equipment used by the Company and is located near the property subject to surface mining rights. On December 1,
2008, the Company approved monthly rent and utility payments to the Hunts of $9,000 per month for this space. Rent
and utilities expense recognized by the Company related to this home office was $108,000 during each of the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

In December 2008, $250,000 received from the issuance of debt was deposited into a checking account of Jewel Hunt,
the Company's Chairman of the Board. These funds were used for operating expenses of the Company, with the
remaining balance classified as a related party receivable at December 31, 2008. The balance of the funds were used
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for operating expenses of the Company in 2009.

On August 21, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with Momentum Biofuels, Inc. (“Momentum”), under
which the Company agreed to acquire certain assets and assume certain liabilities, obligations and commitments of
Momentum. On October 9, 2009, the Momentum transaction was consummated and on December 31, 2009, the
Company received 40,000,000 shares of Momentum common stock and became a 39% owner of Momentum. The
Momentum transaction is described in Note 4 and resulted in the following:

George Sharp, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Company's Board of Directors,
became the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Momentum.

Jewel Hunt, the Company's Chairman of the Board of Directors, became a member of the Board of Directors of
Momentum.

The Company transferred 10,000,000 shares of Momentum to a company controlled by George Sharp, Crown
Financial, LLC ("Crown"), for consulting services. In connection with the transfer, the Company recognized $10,000
of expense, included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations, based on the estimated value of the Momentum shares.

Included in the payment of selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations were amounts paid to the Hunts, George Sharp and Crown for compensation as follows:
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, continued

December 31,

2010 2009
George Sharp for cash compensation $ 216,000 $ 119,000
George Sharp for stock compensation 137,700 1,459,620
The Hunts for rent, utilities and other 108,000 108,306
Crown for compensation 240,000 36,000
Crown for compensation in the form of Momentum stock - 10,000

$ 677,200 $ 1,732,926

On October 5, 2009, the Company entered into a service agreement that included a note payable to Crown whereby
the Company will pay Crown a total of $500,000 plus interest at the rate of 8% until paid in full for past executive and
advisory services, including equity and debt funding (See Note 6). The Company further agreed to compensate
Crown for services during the period October 1, 2009 through December 31, 2012 as follows:

Amount
October
through
December
2009
Year
ending
December
31,2010
Year
ending
December
31,2011
Year
ending
December
31,2012
Total due
under the $ 1,236,000
agreement

$ 36,000

240,000

360,000

600,000

The service agreement with Crown is non cancelable and is fully collateralized by Hunt assets. All payments due
under this agreement are due semi-monthly. If payments are not paid within ten days of the date due or if the
Company elects to terminate the agreement for any reason, all payments due under the contract will be accelerated and
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immediately payable in full. Further, the Company waived all notice in the event of foreclosure notices on assets. At
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the amount due to Crown for services provided during the period from October 2009 to
December 2010 was $276,000 and $36,000, respectively, which is included in accrued liability to a related party in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

In addition to services provided through Crown, in 2009, George Sharp was awarded 5,841,181 shares of the
Company's common stock for services performed. These shares were valued at approximately $0.25 per share as
described in Note 7. Included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009
was expense of $1,459,620 related to this share issuance. In 2010, Mr. Sharp was awarded 551,186 shares of
Company’s the common stock for services performed. These shares were valued at approximately $0.25 per share as
described in Note 7. Included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010
was expense of $137,770 related to this share issuance.

George Sharp is the owner and primary officer of a start-up company, US Med Alerts. During 2010 and 2009, the
Company loaned US Med Alerts $206,000 and $0, respectively, which was principally used to pay his step-daughter
for consulting services provided to the Company. These loans were recognized as compensation expense in 2010. Mr.
Sharp is also a shareholder and the primary officer in Momentum. During 2010 and 2009, the company advanced
$188,671 and $3,000 to Momentum, was for payment of advanced royalties. These funds were used to fund
Momentum’s operations as it has no revenues. During 2010, the Company deemed these advances uncollectible and
wrote them off as a loss on its equity investment.

11. NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2010 2009
Preferred
stock
dividend
accrued
Common
stock issued
for 193,000 2,052,000
satisfaction
of debt
Debt
assumed for
mining
rights
Investment
acquired for
common
stock

$ 46,666 § -

- 3,605,177

50,000 -

509,354
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Carbon Green N.A., Inc. (CGNA) Acquisition

On March 2, 2011, the first closing, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the "Acquisition
Agreement") to acquire approximately 85% of the common stock of CGNA and 95% of the preferred stock of CGNA
in exchange for the issuance to ten selling shareholders of CGNA 30,249,256 shares of the Company's common stock,
123,675 shares of the Company's Class A preferred stock, 123,675 shares of the Company's Class B preferred stock,
24,000 warrants to acquire shares of the Company's Class A preferred stock at an exercise price of $208 a share
expiring on March 2, 2016, and 38,285 warrants to purchase share of the Company's Class B preferred stock at an
exercise price of $248 a share expiring on March 2, 2016. Under the Acquisition Agreement, CGNA will become a
majority-owned subsidiary of the Company. At the second closing, expected to occur on or before April 8, 2011, a
physical exchange of securities will occur.

Under the Acquisition Agreement the Company also agreed to issue to the remaining eligible shareholders of CGNA
offers to acquire their CGNA stock on the same basis as above and to cause CGNA to enter into a merger during the
next 90 days. Once the second closing occurs, the Company will have acquired the remaining shares of CGNA
common and preferred stock on the same basis as above. The purpose of the additional acquisition of CGNA shares is
to allow the Company to acquire the remaining equity interests in CGNA, resulting in CGNA becoming the
Company's wholly-owned subsidiary. We will issue to the remaining CGNA common and preferred shareholders
5,433,041 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase 8,027,900 shares of the Company's
common stock at an exercise price between $1 and $2.50 a share expiring on various dates between 2012 and 2014. In
addition, CGNA will return 17,626 shares of the Company's Class A preferred stock and 6,480 shares of the
Company's Class B preferred stock received in connection with the first closing. We anticipate this closing to occur
before the end of the second quarter of 2011.

The Acquisition Agreement also includes provisions for the Company to issue certain directors, employees, advisers,
vendors and consultants of CGNA up to 10,000,000 options (9,245,000 of which have been designated) to purchase
shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share, expiring on March 2, 2014. These
options will not begin vesting until September 1, 2011 and will then vest in equal portions over eight quarters.

The CGNA assets that we acquired under the Acquisition Agreement include an operating tire recycling plant, license
agreements and 189 worldwide patents for a method of recycling 100% of scrap tires with a near zero carbon footprint
(the “Carbon Green System”). The Carbon Green System was created during a five year timeframe that was devoted to
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developing, testing, patenting and building a fully operational system that breaks down, separates and recycles 100%
of scrap tires into reusable materials. The operating plant, located in the nation of Cyprus, is currently the world’s
largest commercially operating “pyrolysis” plant. Under the Acquisition Agreement the Company will also assume
existing license agreements that call for the Company to receive $2 million dollars per year for five years beginning
2011 from licensees (who would otherwise forfeit licenses), and additional royalties projected to be $60 million by
year end 2011, if sales and construction goals are met by licensees. It is The Company's intention to build ten tire
recycling plants in North America during the next five years to address the growing environmental problems caused
by hundreds of millions of waste tires annually .

Pursuant to the SPA, we will be responsible for the payment of CGNA’s and its predecessor’s existing liabilities and
ongoing costs. These amounts have not been quantified at this time. The acquisition of Carbon Green under the
Acquisition Agreement was intended to qualify as a tax-free reorganization under the provisions of Section 368 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to be accounted for on a purchase basis.

The accompanying pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited and illustrate the effect of
Hunt’s acquisition (‘“Pro Forma”) of Carbon Green. The pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December
31, 2010 is based on the historical balance sheets of Hunt and Carbon Green as of those dates and assumes the
acquisition took place on that date. The pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2010 are based on the historical statements of operations of Hunt and Carbon Green for that period. The
pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations assume the acquisition took place on January 1, 2010.
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HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, continued

Carbon Green N.A., Inc. (CGNA) Acquisition, continued

The pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements may not be indicative of the actual results of the
acquisition. In particular, the pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are based on management’s
current estimate of the allocation of the purchase price, the actual allocation of which may differ. The accompanying
pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in connection with the historical financial
statements of Hunt and Carbon Green, including the related notes, and other financial information included in filing.

HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES, INC.

PROFORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

DECEMBER 31, 2010

Carbon Green Hunt

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term

. $ 411,952 $ 1,069,473
investments

Marketable securities 181,459 -

Related party receivables 984,689 29,413
Accounts receivable 177,181 -
Inventory 232,727 -

Prepaid roy.altles to i 622.986
related parties

Prepaid rent and other 124,502 59,074

Total current assets 2,112,510 1,780,946

E;?Pe“y andequipment, 16 503 660 918,047
Surface mining rights - 3,696,177
Intangible assets, net 6,717,034 -
Deposits and other assets - 25,000
Total assets $ 19423204 $ 6,420,170
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(DEFICIT)
Current liabilities

Pro Forma Adjustments
Pro Forma
Debit Credit

Consolidated

$ 1,481,424

181,459
1,014,102
177,181
232,727

622,986

183,576
3,893,456

11,511,707

3,696,177
139,100,000
25,000

$ 158,226,340

132,382,966 [2]

$ 132,382,966 $ -
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Accounts payable
Accrued expenses/other
liabilities

Payables to related
parties

Due to shareholders
Current portion of long
term debt

Total current liabilities

Stockholders' equity
(deficit)

Class A preferred stock

Class B preferred stock
Common stock

Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other
comprehensive income
Total stockholders' equity
(deficit)
Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity

$ 2,797,373
476,194

1,429,536
1,900,000
544,277

7,147,380

71,082

52,658,188
(38,983,622)

(1,469,824)

12,275,824

$ 19,423,204

$ 757,879
646,319

1,100,000

4,346,704
6,850,902

2,414,139
310,642

13,884,175

(17,039,688)

(430,732)

$ 6,420,170

See pro forma adjustments for explanation of [1] to [3].
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$

52,658,188 [1]

52,946,763

$ 52,946,763

$

3,445,399
37,371,711
3,716,344
40,310,613
5,042,999
54,700,642

38,983,622
1,469,824

185,041,154

$ 185,041,154

(1]
[2]
(1]
[2]
(1]
[2]

(1]
(1]

$ 3,555,252
1,122,513

2,529,536
1,900,000
4,890,981
13,998,282

43,231,249
44,337,599
73,698,898

(17,039,688)

144,228,058

$ 158,226,340
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12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, continued

HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES, INC.
PROFORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

HUNT GLOBAL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Carbon Green N.A., Inc. (CGNA) Acquisition, continued

Carbon Green Hunt

Net loss
Preferred stock dividends

Net loss attributable to common $ (12 627,260) $ (5,363.471) $

Loss per common share

Sales $ 251,223
Cost of sales 1,046,228
Gross profit (795,170)
General and administrative 10,448,207
expenses
Depreciation and amortization 1,280,188
Loss from continuing operations (12,523,565)
Other income and (expense):
Interest expense -
Interest income 3,128
Loss on debt conversion (64,191)
Loss on investments (42,632)

(12,627,260)

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

$

$

4,269,663
108,550
(4,378,213)

(758,396)
13,555

(193,751)
(5,316,805)
(46,666)

(0.07)

76,507,008

See pro forma adjustments for explanation of [3] and [4].

PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS AS OF AND FOR

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Debit

Pro Forma Adjustment 1
Additional paidin  $
capital

Class A

Preferred Stock

Class B

Preferred Stock

52,658,188

Credit

$ $
3,445,399
3,716,344

Pro Forma Adjustments

Debit
$ - $

13,239,167 [3]

288,575  [4]
13,527,742 $

35,682,297 [S]

Pro Forma
Credit Consolidated
$ 251,223

1,046,228
(795,160)

14,612,293

14,627,905
(30,035,368)

(758,395)
16,683
(64,191)
(236,329)
(31,077,601)
(335,241)

$ (31,412,842)
$ (0.28)

112,189,305
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Common stock - 5,042,999
Acgummated ) 38,983,622
deficit
Accumulated
o i 1,469,824
comprehensive
income

$

52,658,188 $ 52,658,199

To eliminate the capital accounts of Carbon Green at
December 31, 2010, the balance sheet date.
Pro Forma Adjustment 2

) $
Intangible assets, net 132.382.966 i
Class A
Preferred Stock 37,371,711
Class B
Preferred Stock 40,310,613
Common stock - 54,700,642
$ $
132,382,966 132,382,966

To record the effects of the acquisition of Carbon Green as
if it occurred on December 31, 2010, the balance sheet date.
Pro Forma
Adjustment 3
Amortization of
intangibles
Pro Forma
Adjustment 4
Preferred stock
dividends

Pro Forma Adjustment 5

$ 13,239,167

$ 288,575

To record the effect of common shares issued in connection
with the Carbon Green acquisition as if they occurred at
January 1, 2010, the beginning of the reporting period.
Preferred shares that are convertible to common stock and
warrants have not been considered because their effect is
anti-dilutive.
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Tel: (284) 494 3783 PO Box 34

Fax: (284) 494 2220 Sea Meadow House

www.bdo.vg Tobacco Wharf
Road Town

Tortola VGI1110

British Virgin Islands

Independent Auditors' Report

To The Shareholders Of:
Carbon Green, Inc.

Tortola, British Virgin Islands

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Carbon Green, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to

as the Company ), as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of operations and comprehensive income,
shareholders' equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of the Company as at June 30, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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As explained in Note 1, as a result of a share purchase agreement whereby the Company purchased all of the issued
and outstanding shares of Greenwood Commerce Ltd. ( Greenwood ) from CBp Carbon Industries, Inc. ( CBp Carbon )
in exchange for the issuance to CBp Carbon of one common share of the Company for each four CBp Carbon
common shares outstanding. This acquisition has been accounted for as a recapitalization of Greenwood and, as such,
Greenwood has been treated as the acquiring entity for accounting purposes and the Company is the surviving entity
for legal purposes. As a result, financial information as at and for the year ended June 30, 20009 is that of Greenwood.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 2a) to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from
operations and has an accumulated deficit of $33,217,158 that raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern. Management s plans in regard to these matters are described in Note 2a). The financial statements do
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

//s// BDO Limited
Tortola, British Virgin Islands

February 9, 2011

BDO Limited, a BVI Business Company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (Formerly NEEMA, Inc.)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at June 30, 2010 and 2009

(Expressed in U.S. dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trading securities
Available-for-sale investment
Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and deposits
Due from related parties
Receivable on disposition of subsidiary — related party
Assets of discontinued operations

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Technology rights

Trademark

Assets of discontinued operations

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - other

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - related parties

Borrowings

Bank overdraft

Shares to be issued

Liabilities of discontinued operations

Non-Current Liabilities
Due to related parties

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Issued share capital

Additional paid-in capital
Employee equity-benefits reserve

Notes 2010

70,927

3 355,594

8 1,073,064
39,754
91,487
112,925

13 296,810

13 —

3 _
2,040,561

7 9,984,488

6 6,679,167
387,867

3 _
17,051,522
19,092,083
1,746,155

13 1,417,188

9 72,475
19,134

10 1,349,900

3 _
4,604,852

4,13 —
4,604,852

10 69,956
47,560,776

11 2,601,456

2009

3,534,497
1,025,882

297,851

157,990
180,632

5,196,852

10,965,856

814
10,966,670

16,163,522

584,936
93,662

510,007
1,188,605
38,667,105
39,855,710

1,000
9,603,131
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Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,201,775 )
Accumulated deficit (33,543,182 )
Total Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit) 14,487,231
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 19,092,083

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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(586,365 )
(32,709,954 )

(23,692,188 )

$ 16,163,522
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (Formerly NEEMA, Inc.)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

(Expressed in U.S. dollars except share and per-share amounts)

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Expenses

Amortization of license rights

Consulting and management fees

Consulting and management fees — related party
Depreciation

Exchange (gain) loss

General and administrative

Legal and accounting

Legal and accounting — related party
Impairment of available-for-sale investment
Impairment of loan — related party

(Gain) loss on trading securities — realized
(Gain) loss on trading securities — unrealized
Marketing fees

Organization costs

Stock based compensation

Wages and benefits

Total expenses

Loss from continuing operations before interest
Interest income

Interest expense

Gain from forgiveness of debt

Effective interest on related party loan

Losses on disposal of assets

Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Loss for the year
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Note

13

13

13

11

13

2010

188,724
(638,947 )

(450,223 )

320,833
817,052
1,574,489
216,960
(20,730 )
869,963
88,912
464,352
595,142
157,990
(140,777 )
(94,273 )
1,358,135
271,758
2,601,455
322,341

9,403,602

(9,853,825 )
(8,442 )
125,257

(2,459,807 )
(64,191 )

(12,261,008 )
(656,369 )
539,131

(12,378,246 )
(1,615,410 )

(13,993,656 )

330,650
1,096,651
18,268
8,194,679
700,588
276,433

465,108
411,665

376,398

342,572
12,213,012

(12,213,012 )
678,749
(321,650 )
786,614

(11,069,299 )
(2,753,498 )

(13,822,797 )
(355,139 )

(14,177,936 )
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APPROVED BY THE BOARD
Director
John Novak
February 9, 2011 Date

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (Formerly NEEMA, Inc.)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

(Expressed in U.S. dollars except share amounts)

June 30, 2008
Net loss for the
year

Addition paid
in capital raised
due to debt
extinguishment
Movement due
to foreign
currency
translation

June 30, 2009
Write-off on
debt
extinguishment
Issuance of
shares on asset
transfer — Note 4
Transfer of
subsidiary with
negative equity
to CBp Carbon —
Note 5

Equity acquired
through reverse
acquisition
Commitment
per SPA — Note
1

Net loss for the
year

Stock based
compensation
Movement due
to foreign
currency
translations

Number of
Issued
Shares
Ordinary

1,000

1,000

10,000

69,944,886

Issued
Share
Capital

1,000

1,000

10,000

58,956

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

9,603,131

9,603,131

(7,143,324 )

57,843,969

(11,545,018 )

(197,982 )

(1,000,000 )

Employee

equity-benefiBeficit

Reserve

2,601,456

(18,887,157 )
(13,822,797 )

(32,709,954 )

11,545,018

(12,378,246 )

Accumulated
Other

Loss

(231,226 )

(355,139 )

(586,365 )

(1,615,410 )

Comprehensive otal

(19,117,383 )
(13,822,797 )

9,603,131

(355,139 )

(23,692,188 )

(7,143,324 )

57,853,969

(139,026 )

(1,000,000 )

(12,378,246 )

2,601,456

(1,615,410 )
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June 30,2010 69,955,886 $ 69,956 $ 47,560,776  $ 2,601,456 $ (33,543,182 ) $ (2,201,775 ) $ 14,487,231

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (Formerly NEEMA, Inc.)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)

Operating activities
Net loss from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Net (gain) loss on held for trading securities
Impairment of available-for-sale investment
Stock based compensation

Effective interest on related party loan

Net loss from continuing operations before working capital changes
Decrease in advances

Increase in accounts receivable

Increase in inventory

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and deposit

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Cash flows used in operating activities - continuing operations
Cash flows used in operating activities — discontinued operations

Cash flows used in operating activities

Investing activities

Sale of held-for-trading investments

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of trademark

Advances (to) from related parties

Cash flows used in investing activities — continuing operations
Cash flows used in investing activities — discontinued operations
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities

Financing activities

Increase (decrease) in borrowing

Proceeds on shares issued through APA

Shares to be issued

Advances from (to) related parties

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities — continuing operations
Cash flows used by financing activities — discontinued operations

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities

Movement due to foreign currency translations

Net cash transferred in though Asset Purchase Agreement

2010

(12,261,008 )

537,793
(235,049 )
595,142
2,601,456
2,459,807
(6,301,859 )
(26,281 )
(91,487 )
184,926
2,484,745
(3,749,956 )
(656,369 )
(4,406,325 )
905,337
(774,317 )
(183,901 )
(52,881 )
(52,881 )
72,475
10,000
1,349,900
780,528
2,212,903
2,212,903
(1,615,410 )
354,514

2009

(11,069,299 )

18,268
876,773

(10,174,258 )

2,567,338

(59,881 )
(296,762 )
(7,963,563 )
(2,753,498 )

(10,717,061 )

1,726,744
(5,586,688 )
10,750
(3,849,194 )

(3,849,194 )

(17,335,338 )

(2,209,966 )
(19,545,304 )

(19,545,304 )
(355,139 )
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Net cash transferred in through reverse acquisition 3,193

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (3,504,006 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 3,555,799
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at end of period $ 51,793

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash in bank - continuing operations 70,927
Bank overdraft — continuing operations (19,134
Cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations —

$ 51,793

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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)

(34,466,698 )

38,022,497

$ 3,555,799

3,534,497

21,302
$ 3,555,799
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (FORMERLY NEEMA INC.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Nature of business and Continuation of Operation

Carbon Green, Inc. (formerly Neema Inc.) was incorporated in the State of Nevada on January 17, 2006. The liability
of the shareholders is limited by shares. On November 30, 2009, the Company entered into a share purchase

agreement with CBp Carbon Industries Inc. (“CBp Carbon”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Greenwood Commerce
Ltd. (“Greenwood”). Pursuant to the terms of the share purchase agreement, the Company has acquired all of the issued
and outstanding common shares of Greenwood from CBp Carbon in exchange for the issuance to CBp Carbon of one
common share for each four CBp Carbon common shares outstanding, for an aggregate of 33,346,262 of the
Company’s common shares. In addition, the Company issued 1,056,041 share purchase warrants to CBp Carbon on the
basis of one share purchase warrant for each four outstanding share purchase warrants of CBp Carbon. 868,541 of the
warrants entitle the holder thereof to purchase one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.50
per share until January 15, 2013 and 187,500 of the warrants entitle the holder thereof to purchase one share of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share until January 15, 2013. The Company also agreed to
place $1,000,000 in escrow to be used for certain payables of CBp Carbon, in such amounts and at such times as
mutually agreed by the Company and CBp Carbon. The acquisition was accounted for as recapitalization of
Greenwood because the shareholders of Greenwood controlled Carbon Green, Inc. after the acquisition. Greenwood
was treated as the acquiring entity for accounting purposes and Carbon Green was the surviving entity for legal
purposes. The combined company is considered to be a continuation of the operations of Greenwood.

The issued and outstanding common stock of Greenwood prior to the completion of acquisition was restated to reflect
the common stock issued by Carbon Green, Inc.

These consolidated financial statements presented are those of Carbon Green, Inc., formerly Neema Inc., (“parent
company”’), its 100% owned subsidiary Greenwood Commerce Ltd. and its 100% owned subsidiaries CBp Cyprus Ltd.
& Conlane Enterprises Ltd. Collectively, they are referred to herein as “the Company”.

The Company’s nature of business is to commercialize a technology used for converting scrap automotive tires into
reusable components and producing a commercial substitute for carbon black, trademarked as Carbon Green™, a main
commodity for the rubber and plastics industries. The registered office of the company is located at Vysoka 26,
Bratislava 81106, Slovak Republic.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments, except as disclosed
herein) necessary to present fairly the balance sheet as of June 30, 2010, and results of operating and comprehensive
income for the year ended June 30, 2010, cash flows, and equity for the year ended June 30, 2010, as applicable, have
been made.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were issued, February 9,
2011, in accordance with ASC 855 “Subsequent Events”.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation and going concern

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”). They have been prepared under the historical cost convention
and are expressed in United States of America dollars.

The Company’s continuance as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to raise future financing to fund
additional operating facilities. The Company has incurred substantial and negative cash flows from operations in
every fiscal period since inception. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company incurred a loss from operations of
approximately $12.1 million and negative cash flows from operations of $4.2 million. As of June 30, 2010 the
Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $33.2 million.
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (FORMERLY NEEMA INC.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)  Basis of Preparation and going concern (continued)

The Company's consolidated financial statements have been presented on a going concern basis, which contemplates
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred
a consolidated net loss of approximately $12.1 million for the year ended Jones 30, 2010.

During 2010, the Company restructured its operations as described in Note 1. The Company continues to face
significant risks associated with successful execution of its strategy. These risks include, but are not limited to
technology and product development, introduction and market acceptance of the products, changes in the marketplace
and liquidity. The Company commenced commercial production at its pilot plant in Cyprus during the quarter ending
June 30, 2010.

The Company may need additional funds for promoting new products and working capital required to support
increased sales. The precise amount and timing of the funding needs cannot be determined accurately at this time, and
will depend on a number of factors, including the market demand for the Company's products, the quality of product
development efforts, management of working capital, and continuation of normal payment terms and conditions for
purchase of services. The Company is uncertain whether its cash balances and cash flow from operations will be
sufficient to fund its operations for the next twelve months.

In order to meet future funding requirements, as more fully described in Note 16c), subsequent to year end, a major
shareholder has agreed to continue to make financing available on favourable terms and conditions. Subsequent to

year end and as described in Note 16g), the Company also entered into a joint venture agreement to effect preliminary
joint research into the compatibility of the Company’s bio-fuel with that of a US-based company’s NOX and SOX fuel.
Management are of the opinion that this agreement will allow the Company to expand production of its products to
North America.

(b) Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. All intra-group
balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full.

A subsidiary is consolidated until the date that control ceases or a decision is made to dispose of the subsidiary. If the
decision is made to dispose of the subsidiary within a period of less than twelve-months following the balance sheet
date and a sale is highly probable, then the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are recorded as available for sale and
any profits or losses from the operations of the disposed subsidiary are recognized in the statement of operations and
comprehensive income discontinued operations.
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(c) Use of estimates

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and this requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company bases its estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Accordingly,
actual results may differ significantly from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (FORMERLY NEEMA INC.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the underlying operation are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than the
operation’s functional currency are translated at rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date to the operation’s
functional currency. Related transaction gains and losses are reported in the statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

Upon consolidation, the results of operations of subsidiaries, whose functional currency is other than the reporting
currency of the Company, the US Dollar, are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Assets and
liabilities, excluding equity account balances which are translated at historical rates, are translated at period end
exchange rates. Currency translation adjustments are presented as comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements and are included in net income only upon sale or liquidation of the related foreign subsidiary.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits with original maturities of three months or less
when purchased. As of June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash held with banks.
Because of short maturity of these investments, the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

(f) Available for sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this category or not
classified as financial assets at fair value through income, held-to-maturity investments or loans and receivables.
Available-for-sale investments are recognized at fair value on the trade date, which is the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset and subsequently re-measured to fair value through equity. If there is no quoted
market price in an active market and the fair value cannot be reliably measured, the available for sale investments are
subsequently carried at cost, including transaction costs and reviewed annually for impairment. When these
investments are sold or impaired the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the statement of operations as
net realized gains/losses on financial assets.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Expenditures for new facilities or equipment and expenditures that extend the useful lives of existing facilities or
equipment are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to depreciate such costs

over the estimated productive lives.

Construction in progress primarily represents the renovation costs of plant, machinery and equipment. Costs incurred
are capitalized and transferred to property, plant and equipment upon completion, at which time depreciation
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commences. Cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

The Company’s depreciation rates on fixed assets other than construction in progress are as follows:

Useful life (in years)
Building 25
Office equipment 10
Manufacturing equipment 5
Vehicles 5
Computer hardware 5

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount and are included in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income.

F-33
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CARBON GREEN, INC. (FORMERLY NEEMA INC.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at their date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangible assets are not capitalized and expenditure is recognized in the consolidated statement of
operations and comprehensive income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets consist of technology rights, trademarks and trade names. Intangible assets related to trademarks and
trade names have indefinite lives, and as a result are not amortized, but are subject to review for impairment. We
review our intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment annually, as of June 30, and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable.

(i) Technology rights
Technology rights acquired were measured on initial recognition at cost, and are being amortized over 10 years.
(j) Recoverability of Long Lived Assets Including Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

We review property and equipment and intangible assets, excluding goodwill, for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. We measure recoverability
of these assets by comparing the carrying amounts to the future undisco